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Orexigen Therapeutics, Inc. et al Doc

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

KARIM KHOJA, on behalf of himself anf Case No0.15-CV-540 JLS (JLB)

all others similarly situated
Plaintiff, ORDER (1) GRANTING IN PART

AND DENYING IN PART THE

\Z MOVING DEFENDANTS’ REQUEST

OREXIGEN THERAPEUTICS, INC., (Fz?géﬁslﬁgtg/%ﬂs&lNTn:F’s
JOSEPH P. HAGAN, MICHAEL A,

REQUEST FOR JUDICIAL NOTICE,
NARACHI, and PRESTON KLASSEN ANS (3) GRANTING IN PART AND

Defendarg.l. DENYING IN PART THE MOVING

DEFENDANTS' MOTION TO
AND ALL CONSOLIDATED CASES DISMISS

(ECF Nes. 98, 9815, 1031)

Presently before the Court Moving Defendantsloseph P. Hagan, Michael
Narachi, and Présn Klassets Motion to DismissConsolidated Complaint for Violatig
of the Federal Securities LawdMot.,” ECF N0.98).! Also before the Court areead
Plaintiff Karim Khoja's Response irOppositi;n to (‘Opp’n,” ECF No. 103 andthe

Moving Defendang’ Reply in Support of‘Reply,” ECF No0.105 the Motion, as well asg

! DefendantOrexigen Therapeutics, Indiled a voluntary petition for bankruptcy under Chaptersek,
In re Orexigen Therapeutics, IndNo. 18-10518-KG (Bankr. D. Del. filed Mar. 12, 2018); conseque

110

A.

n

D

ntly,

pursuant to the automatic bankruptcy se&gell U.S.C. § 362(a), Orexigen is not a party to the Motion.
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the Moving Defendants’ Request for Judicial NotitBdfs.” RIN,” ECF No0.98-15) and
Reply in Support ofthar RIN (“RIJN Reply,” ECF No0.106) and Lead Plaintiff's
Declaration of Alayne Gobeille in Support of His Opposition (“Pl.’'s RIRCF No.

1031), which the Court construes aseguest fojudicial notice The Court vacated the

hearing and took thMotion under submission without oral argument pursuant to Civil

Local Rule 7.1(d)(1). SeeECF No.107. Havingcarefully considered_ead Plaintiff's
Consolidated Complaint (“CC,” ECF No. 5&hd the material appropriately incorporh]
by referencethe Parties’ argumentsand the law, the CouGRANTS IN PART AND
DENIES IN PART the Moving Defendants’ RJNDENIES Plaintiffs RJN, and
GRANTS IN PART AND DENIES IN PART the Moving Defendants’ Mtion as
follows.
BACKGROUND 2

l. Factual Background

DefendantOrexigen is a developmental stage biotechnology firm focusing o
development of pharmaceutical product candidates for the treatment of obesity.

Orexigen is a small company widpproximately fifty employeesld. I 33. Its common

stock is traded on the NASDAQ. 11 33, 131(a)Defendant Narachi is Orexigen’s CE

and a directqrid. 1 34 Defendant Hagan ®rexigen’sChief Business Officer and Actin]
CFQ id. T 36,and Defendant Klassen i©rexigen’'sHead of Global Developmentid.
1 38.

Orexigen’s primary obesity treatment candidate is Contravk { 7, which is
designed to treat overweight and obese persons already at high risk for majse
cardiovascular even(SMACE") , defined as myocardial infarction (heart attack), str

2 The facts alleged in Plaintiff€onsolidated Complaint are accepted as true for purposes of the M
DefendantsMotion. See Vasquez v. Los Angeles Ct§7 F.3d 1246, 1249 (9th Cir. 2007) (hold
that, in ruling on a motion to dismiss, the Court must “accept all material allegafifact as true”)The
Court also considers those materials outside the Consolidated Complainetpetgarly incorporate
by reference.See Khoja v. Orexigen Therapeutics, 899 F.3d 988, 998 (9th Cir. 2018grt. denied
139 S. Ct. 2615 (20193ee also infrpages 15-21.
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or cardiovascular deathd. {1 8 87. Contrave is made from two effatent generic drug
bupropion and naltrexondd.  66. Orexigen has a collaboration agreement with T4
Pharmacetical Company Limited to develop and commercialize Contrave in the U
States, Canada, and Mexical. 7.

Orexigen submitted a new drug application for Contrave to the United State
and Drug Administration*EDA”). Id. T 49. Concerned thatontrave may cause adve
cardiovascular events because of its effect on blood pressure and heait fat27, n

January 2011the FDA mandated a randomized, dodlbli@d, placebecontrolled clinical

trial designed to assess the cardiovascular risks associated with ContraVeigthe

Study’) before thenew drug applicationould be approvedd. 11 8 49 The Light Study’s
Executive Steering Committde=SC”) was chaired by Dr. Steven Nissen, a Departr
Chair of Cardiovascular Medicine at the Cleveland Clihic.at1 n.1. Orexigen initiatec
the Light Study in June 2012nd completed screening in December 2012, resultil
approximately 8,900 patients randomized for treatmkht{f 51. The FDA agreed that
the Light Study’s interim analysievealed that Contrave did not increase the risk
major cardiac event b§0 percentor more Contrave could be approvedd. 11 51, 96
126.

In November 2013, the Light Study’s Data Monitoring CommiftedMC”) shared
with Orexigen the completed interim resultsl. § 52. The results, based on nindtur
MACE, which was approximately 2%rcentof the planned MACE for the Light Stud

indicated that Contkee reduced cardiovascular events byp&tcentcompared with :

placebo. Id. 1 70, 87. Specifically, thirtyfive Contrave patients experienced MAC

whereadifty -nineplacebo patients didd.  88.

The Light Study’seSC DMC, and Orexigen entered in@ data access plz
(“DAP”), pursuant tavhich all agreed to limit the number of people within Orexigen \
had access to the interim results to just those indivddwhlo needed to facilitat
submission of Orexigen’s marketing application to the FDAA.J 53 & n.10. The Light
Study’s statistical review team, however, subsequently discovered that Orexig
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leaked the positive interim data to over 100 peojde{110,53. Among those to whor
the data was leaked wakarachi, who publicly pledged im Novembef5, 2013Forbes
article, “We’re going to honor the integrity of [the Light Study’shbiso we don’t screy
it up and get the final analysis.td. 119, 52, 58. Others who saw the data includ
Investment bankers and several representatioes Tiakeda.ld. § 58.

The FDA later confirmed in a September 10, 2014 report that Oreixigenperly
had disseminated unblinded interim data “far beyond the intended core.’”gréay
(emphasis omitted The Light Study’®MC “found that it [was] particularly concernir

that members of Orexigen’s Board of Directors., who have financial interest in tl

outcome of the trial, were also provided full access to the unblinded ddtgemphasis

omitted. Consequentlythe FDA required Orexigen to sign a new DAR. {1 11, 60.

At a June 4, 2014 meeting, the FDA reminded Narachi and Klassethé¢hab
percentinterim results have “a high degree of uncertainty and were likely to chang
the accumulation of additional data.td.  59. The FDA wasalso concerned ths
Orexigen’s corporate leaders knew the 25% interim reslatg] 10. The=DA also noted
that the unblinding violated Orexigen’s data access plan and that the extdrd
confidentiality breach of interim results in the Light Study was unprecedeluted

On July 2, 2014, Orexigen filed patent applicatmmber 14/322,810 (thé’810
Applicatior’) with the United States Patent and Trademark OffitéSPTQO), listing
Klassen as the “patent applicant” and “inventold. 12, 61. The '810 Application
covereda new indication—a cardiovascular benefitfor Contrave based on the @ércent
interim data. Id. § 66. The 810 Application explicitly included the 2percentinterim
Light Study dataid. 1 12, 62and noted:

Surprisingly,rather than increasing the occurrence of MACE in
this high risk patient population, the results indicate that
treatment with [Contrave] decreases the occurrence of MACE in
overweight and obese subjects with cardiovascular risk factors.
Briefly stated, fewer subjects in the [Contrave] treatment group
experienced a MACE even compared to placebo.
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Id. { 62 (alterations in original) (emphasis omijteldursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 122, Orexig
requested that the USPTO keep the '810 Application confidemsiaflf 12 & n.6,61.

On Septembet0,2014, the FDA approved Contrave for commercial uekg[{14,
55, 126 and n December 2014, the Committee for Medicinal Products for Humar
(“CHMP”), the centralized expert advisory committee of the European Medicines A¢
adopted a positive opinion for Contrave and recommended that the European Cam]
grant a centralized marketing authorizatford.  63. The European Commission 3
informed Orexigen that it would review a draft decision granting maudsetiithorizatior
for Contrave during a meeting of the Standing Committee scheduled for Marchl@0!

On January 5, 201%) hopes that the USPT®publication of the 2perceninterim
Light Study data would influence European regulators, Narachi and Klassen res

Orexigen’s prior nonpublication request to the USPTA.|Y 14, 8-65. On January §

2015, the USPTO indicated that the '810 Application was “in the publication quile.

1 14 (emphasis omittedOn February 5, 2015, Hagan and Narachi were awarded &

option grant ©202,660 and 635,150 shares, respectively, at an exercise price of §b.

1 84 and o February 11, 2015, tH8SPTO advised Orexigen that the '810 Applicati

would beisswedas a patendn March 3, 20151d. ] 67.

On February 25, 2015, Klassen informed investors on a conference call thaf
woluld]n’t be any release of the [Light Study] information unlessspexified boundarie
[we]re hit.” Id. (emphasis omitted Orexigen’s February 27, 20Form 10-K noted that
“[d]isclosure of interim results of ongoing clinical trials, including disclosurentarim
results related to the protection of intellectual property . . . could significantly affe
product development costsadversely impact our ability to maintain or receive additig
regulatory approvals.Id. I 68 (alteration in original) (gomasis omitted

On March 3, 2015, the USPTi€suedJ.S. Patent No. 8,969,371 (th871 Paternit)
fromthe’810 Application Defs.” RINEXx. B, ECF N0.98-4; see alsaCC 1 15,69. That

3 Contrave is marketed under the name Mysimba in Eurlapd]. 63 n.16.
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same dayQrexigen also filed &orm8-K with the United States Securities and Exchg
Commission (“SEC™announcing the publication tie’371 Patentand releasing the 2
percentinterim Light Study ResultsCC {115, 69,87. TheForm8-K noted that thé371
Patent‘incorporate[d] data fronfthe Light Study]’ and that the '371 Patefitontain|[s]
claims related to a positive effect of Contravdaardiovascular (CV”)] outcomes” base
on an “analysis . . . conducted based on 94 observed an adjudicated [MACE], wh
approximately 25% of the planned MACE for the Light Studi’  87. TheForm8-K
further explained that the interim analysis “was prospectively designed to anaddely]
and preliminary assessment of safety to support regulatory approval” and that “[a
number of MACE are required to precisely determine the effect of Contrave o

nge
)

ch w

larg
n CV

outcomes.” Id. Orexigen did not consult the FDA, Dr. Nissen, or Takeda prior to filing

theForm8-K. Id. { 15.
Soon thereafteForbesreported that FDA senior official Dr. John Jenknasl stateq
that the FDA was unaware that Orexiget8%0 Applicationcontained the 2%ercent

interim data and expressed “serious concerns” about Orexigen’s disclosure of the

inter

data. Id. 1193, 118 The FDA reported that it was “very disappointed by Orexigen’s

actions” and warned patients and physicians that it was “critical that the[] interim
not be misinterpreted.td. 93 (alterations in original). The FDA noted ttjaindpoints
with less than 100 total events are statistically unreliable and were to be views
extreme cautionld. §118.

Late on March 3, 2015, in response tofbebesarticle,Orexigen published a pre
release, explaining that it “filed patent applications baseithe results in order to prese
the potential for additional intellectual propertyld. 1994, 119 It also explained tha
“[d]uring the course of the study, the FDA informed [Orexigen] it had determined th
Light Study would not serve as the postmarketing requirement for Contrave; a ng
would be required.”ld. 94 Orexigen added thahé new trial would start “later th

year,” and results “are anticipated by 202®1! Orexigen added thdft] his morning the

USPTO published the pait and supporting documentation, and [Orexigen] believ
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was appropriate and necessary to make sure this information was equally availaQ
investors.” Id. 1994 (emphasis omitt¢d119

Although Orexigen’s stock had closed at $5.79 per share on March 2, 2015, it
at $7.64 per sha@n March3, 2015 trading as high as $9.37 per shdck.1116,89, 117
More than 95 million Orexigen shares were traded on March 3, 2015, a “highly un
trading volumé’ id. Y 89, 117, especially wwh compared to the average daily trag
volume of approximately 3 million shares per d&g. § 16 n.7.

Analysts responded positively to the March 3, 26b5m 8-K. Id. {1 9691. For
example Analyst Simos Simeonidis from RBC Capital Markets ndbed“[w] e view the
news as very significant” and “[tlhe newly revealed data demonstrated thahlgas
Contrave safe to use from a CV standpoint, but it actually appearsecah@v benefit.’
Id.  90(emphasis omitted Consequently, he rated Orexigen’s shares to “outperfq
Id. Similarly, analysts at Piper Jaffray noted that the Light Study’s interim results “[q

turn the obesity/metabolic syndrome market on its head. We sefdhisovascular

outcome trib(*CVOT")] effect as surprisingly positive and it has several implication
our view for the potential of Contraveld. 1 17, 9Qemphasis omitted)Leerink analys
Paul Matteis reported that “[t]he data this morning show a statistically significanb@e
benefit.” 1d. § 91 (emphasiomitted. Wells Fargo analyst Matthew J. Andrews,
analyzing the data, noted that “the ‘holy grail’ for treating cardiometabolic dises
demonstration of a CV mortality benefit, which to date has not been demonstrate
obesity theapeutic.” Id. 1 17, 91(emphasis omitted
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On March 4, 2014, th&vall Street Journapublished an article explaining that the

FDA “considers the preliminary data ‘far too unreliable to conclude anything futibat
cardiovascular safety.’1d. § 96 (emphasiemitted. The article noted that “LIGHT stug
data was disclosed inappropriately” previously and that the ¢d@d8equentirad decideq
that “Orexigen would have to launch a new study to satisfy the conditions of the af
of its Contrae drug.” Id. (emphasis omitted).The Wall Street Journaleported tha

Dr. Nissen, “the lead reseamtfor the study[,] is upset.ld. Dr. Nissen noted that “h
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was not aware of the interim study results until yestetddlye disclosure was not

approved by the data monitoring committee or the trial's executive committee
Orexigen’s business management was not included in the list of individuals with ap
access to the datdd. (emphasis omitted On March 4, 2015, the price of Orexige
stock closed at $8.4%r shargd. 7116, 97, 120“again on unusually high trading volur
of more than 40.5 million sharésld. 1197, 12Q

A March 5, 2019-orbesarticle reported that “[t]here is widespread speculation
Orexigen used the excuse of the patent filing to publicly reveal the interim results
trial.” 1d. 9 70 (emphasigmitted. TheForbesarticle further reported that critics believ
that“[d]isclosing the results, through the medium of a patent filing and an SEC discl
is a deeply cynical and manipulative actionld. (emphasis omitted) Forbes also
speculated that Orexigen’s repeated disclosure of the Light Study interim resudis
potentially threaten its relationship with the FDA and its ability to obtain further
approvals.ld. § 121.On March 5, 2015, Orexigen’s stock clos#®8.01per share, dow
from its opening price of $8.50 per shatd. 11 19, 121

After the close of trading on March 5, 20Parbespublished another report, whi
included criticisms of Orexigen and its decision to release the interim trial da
Dr. Jenking the FDA's director of the Office of New Drug#d. 1Y 18,122. Dr. Jeniks
criticized the released data as “unreliable,” “misleading,” and “likely false, \Waarded
that Orexigen “could face fines, civil penalties, or even the wittaraf Contrave fron
the market if it did not complete the new pestarketing study that én FDA would
require. ld. On March 6, 2015, the price of Defendant Orexigen’s stock dropped to
per share in intraday trading and closed at $7.10 per share, “again on unusually higf
volume.” Id. 11119, 123, 125.

On March 13, 2015, Orexigen filedF@rm S8 Registration Statement, registeri
six million shares of common stoek a proposed maximum offering price of $7.08
share Id. 1120, 85;see alsdefs.’ RIN Ex. |, ECF No. 941,at 3
111
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In its March 26, 2019-orm 8-K, Orexigen announced that Contrave had rece
marketing authorization in EuropeCC {121, 72, 99. Overnine million shares o
Orexigen’s stock traded on that dayth stock prices increangfrom an opening price ¢
$6.89 on Marcl26, 2015to a closing price of $7.54 on March 27, 2018. 9 72.

Also on March 26, 2015, Light Study researchers discovered that Conf
purported 25ercentinterim heart benefit vanished onitee additional 50percentLight
Study results were considereldl. 1 21,74. The Light Study’&SCunanimously vote
to terminatethe Light Study and to releagsemediatelythe 50percentinterim data. Id.
921,74, 127 Defendants were shown the pércentnterim data demonstrating that t
25 percentinterim cardiovascular benefit had disappeardd. Y 21, 74, 99, 127
Dr. Nissen began tdraft a press release disclosing thep&dcentlLight Study data an

termination of the Light Study, which Takeda approveddreixigenrefused to authorize

Id. 19 21,75.

On May 8, 2015, Orexigen filedForm 8-K containing a press release announ¢

its business and financial results for the first quarter ended March 31,18093.00. The

press release noted that Contrave’s “clinical trial program also includes a-dbnd)e

placebecontrolled cardiovascular outcomes trial known as the Light Study(émphasis

omitted. Orexigen also filed Borm10-Q, id. § 103, noting thats share price might 4
impacted by “announcements regarding [its] clinical trials, including [ ] the Light S
and the postnarketing required clinical trials, including the new CVOT, for Contia
Id. 104 (second alteration in original). TRerm10-Q also represented that “additiof
analysis of the interim results or new data from the continuing Light Study, incl
safetyrelated data, and the additional cardiovascular outcomes trial, may produce
or inconclusive results, or may be inconsistent with the conclusion that the interim &
was successful.ld. (emphasis omittedd The Form10-Q also noted that “[a]ny failure K
[Orexigen] or delay in completing [its] clinical trials, including the Light Study,
obtaining regulatoryapprovals, could cause a delay in the commencement of pt

revenues and causés] research and development expenses to increlhe]"105.
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That same dayQrexigenalso hosted an earnings conference call for analyst
investors. Id. 11 2, 107. In response to a question about whether the Light Stud
been terminated, Klassen represented that the “Light Study is continuing and
continuing to engage both Orexigen and Takeda with the FDA andE8ithandDMC
regarding ultimately the status of the study, but it's an ongoing entity as of right fchv
1 108 (emphasmsmitted. In response to a query about the@bfceninterim data, Klasse

responded:

We have passed the 50% time point and as we’ve stafeck pe
those results are viewed by the Data Monitoring Committee and
it wasn’t a planned look by the sponsors, like the 25% was. The
25% was special because it was for regulatory purposes and so
we have had 50% time point.

Id. 1 109 (alteration in origina Narachi added:

The results from the 50% analysis . . . only come out in the
context of wrapping up the trial @s a final analysis. So, if the
decision is made to terminate the trial early and focus resources
on the next CVOT, which is what we have been advocating, then
| think results would come out sooner.
Id. § 110(emphasis omitted). Narachi also noted,ththere was a decision to terming
the [Light Study] . . ., that would be a disclosure that we would ma#ef 111 (emphasi
omitted).
On May 12, 2015, Orexigen and Takeda annoutieediscontinuation of the Ligh
Study; id. 1124, 126 but did not reveal the 58ercentdata 1d. 1124. They noted tha

they were “pleased that the Light Study is now being terminated and want[ed] to th

patients and all those involved in the studyd. { 27 (alteration in original) (emphas

omitted).

Minutes later, Dr. Nisseand the Clevelan@linic issued a press release annount
boththe termination of the Light Study and thep@sceninterimdata. Id. 124, 75 126
127. The 50percentight Study data revealed that at 192 MACE, the difference bet
111
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the Contraveand placebo groups shrank to g@rcentand was no longer statistica
significant. Id.  127. Dr. Nissen noted:

These results do not confirm the cardiovascular benefits of
Contrave claimed by Orexigen in the patent application based on
the data obtaied at the 25 percent time point in the trial . . . .
These results show neither benefit nor harm for patients taking
the drug, but are consistent with the requirement by the FDA that
the Light Trial demonstrate an absence of a doubling of
cardiovascularisk for patients taking the drug . . . . The
inconsistency of effects on cardiovascular outcomes between the
first 25 percent and the second 25 percent of the Light Study
clearly illustrates the risks inherent in guoelgment of clinical

trial results based upon an interim analysis and demonstrate why
interim results should remain confidential during any ongoing
trial.

Id. 126 (emphasis omitted).

In an article appearing oRorbes.com Dr. Nissenclaimed that‘[p] atientswere
misled, investors were misledld. § 127 (emphasis omittedee also idf 25 Dr. Nissen
also noted that Orexigen had refused to approve a press release publicizingeheebt
Light Study data for six weekdd. 1 25, 127.An article publishedin Medscapen that
same dayuoted Dr. Nissen as saying:

Essentially, when they [Orexigen] filed the patent the company
chose what they were going to put in there and what they were
going to leave out . . . . We felt it was in the public intet@st
take an unprecedented steyl eelease the 50% data because we
couldn’t allow unreliable data to be used in clinical decision
making. We had a duty to the public and also to the investment
community, to tell the truth.

Id. § 128 (alteration in originglsee also id] 26 The price of Orexigen’s common stock

fell from an opening pricef $6.75 on May 11, 2015, 1$5.02 per share at tlwtose &
May 13, 2015.1d. 1 26,130.
. Procedural Background

On March 10, 2015, Plaintiff Lisa Colley filed a class action complaint ag
Defendants, alleging (1) violation of § 10(b) of the Securities Exchange A&3df(the

11
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“1934 Act”) and Rule 10¥b, and (2)violation of § 20(a) of the 1934 ActSee genergl
ECF No. 1. The case was originally assigned to United States District JLokge M,
James LorenzSee id. Two related actions-Stefanko v. Orexigefherapeutics, In¢gNo.
15-CV-00549 JAH (JLB) (S.D. Cal.) and Yantz v. Orexigemherapeutics, In¢.No.
15-CV-557CAB (MDD) (S.D. Cal.>~were filed on March 11, 20155eeECF No. 4.
On May 12 and 13, 2015, a number of competing motions for consolid
appointment of lead plaintiff, and approval of lead counsel were feggenerallyECF
Nos. 26, 27, 28, 29, 32, 33, 34, 35, 37, 38. On June 15, P64&# Plaintiff informed

ation

Judge Lorenz that his motions were unopposedeECF No. 42. Consequently, Judge

Lorenz granted.eadPlaintiff's motions on June 22, 201%ee generalfcCF No. 43.

On June 26, 2015, Judge Lorenz recused himself from this action, whigh we

reassigned to this Court. ECF No. 4@n August 20, 2015, ead Plaintiff filed his
Consolidated Complainsee generalfeCF No. 55 which Defendantsnoved to dismis
on October 52015 See generalfeCF No. 62.

U)

On May 19, 2016, the Court granted in part and denied in part Defendants’ motiot

See generalfeCF No. 76. In ruling on the motion, the Court granted in part and d

leniec

in part Defendants’ request for judicial notiednich requested that the Court take judicial

notice of or incorporate by reference twehiyp documents.See idat 14-19. On the

merits of Lead Plaintiff’s first cause of action, the Court limited its analysis to the adequac

of Lead Plaintiff's allegaons concerning whether Defendarttad made material

misrepresentations or omissions of fa@ee id.at 21-31. The Court dismissed wi

prejudice Plaintiff's first cause of action to the extent it was predicated on m

misstatements or omissions appearing in Orexigen’s March 3, 2015 Héram@® press$

th

Ateric

>4

releasesee idat 22-26, and dismissed without prejudice Plaintiff's first cause of action to

the extent it was predicated on material misstatements or omissions appedring

Orexigen’s May 8, 201%orms 8K and 10Q and earnings conference calkee id.at

26-31. Consequently, the Court also dismissed Lead Plaintiff's second and third causes

111
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action. See idat 31-36. The Court granted Lead Plaintiff thirty days to file an ame
complaint. Id. at 36.

On June 16, 2016, Lead Plaintiff requested that “the Court enter judgment
Lead Plaintiff c[ould] appeal the Order to the United States Court of Appeals for the
Circuit.” SeeECF No. 77. On June 27, 2016, having received no objection
Defendants, the Court directed the Clerk of the Court to enter judg®eeECF N. 78
79.

On July 26, 2016, Lead Plaintiff filed a notice of app&# ECF No. 80. Following
the close of briefingseeECF No. 82, Orexigen filed for bankruptc$ee In re Orexigen
No. 1810518KG (Bankr. D. Del. filed Mar. 12, 2018).

On August 13, 2018, the Ninth Circuit issued a decision affirming in par
reversing in part the Court’s May 19, 2016 Ord&ee generally Khoja@899 F.3d 988The
Ninth Circuit first clarified the standards for judicial notice and incorporationfeyenece,
affirming some and reversing other of the Court’s decisions to judicially noti
incorporate by reference Defendants’ proffered docume8te id.at 998-1008. The
Ninth Circuit next affirmed in part and reversed in part the Court’s dismidda¢ad
Plaintiff’s first cause of action based on the elements of falsityvaidriality. See idat
1008-17. Specifically, the Ninth Circuit determined that the Court erred in dismi
Lead Plaintiff's first cause of action with respect to the M@ cBO015Form 8K to the
extent it was premised on the publication of the 25 percent interimsbscliuse Lea
Plaintiff “pled a plausible claim that Orexigen had a duty to disclose that the 25tg
interim results in the March 2015 Fo8K were unréable.” See idat 1009-10. The
Ninth Circuit also determined that the Court erred to the extent it dismissed Plaintiff
cause of action with respect to the March 2015 press release’s statement al
publication of the '371 Patehiecause “Ggxigen arguably gave the false impression
it played no role in revealing the 25 percent interim resul$.’at 1013. As for the May
8,2015 Forns8-Kand10-Q and earnings conference c#tle Ninth Circuit concluded th
Lead Plaintiffplausibly alleged that “Orexigen gave the false impression that the
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Study was still underwayjd. at 1014, 1016, and that Orexigen was obligated to dis
the 50 percent interim result$d. at 1015, 1017. Finally, the Ninth Circuit affirmed {
Court’'s dismissal of Lead Plaintiff's second cause of actse® id.at 1017418, and
reversed the Court’s dismissal of Lead Plaintiff's third cause of acBen.idat 1018.

Lead Plaintiff declined the opportunity to amend Gisnsolidated Gmplaint ;m
remand. SeeECF No. 96 at 3:910, 6:56, 7:17/20. Consequentlyoflowing astatus
hearing,seeECF No. 92, the Court set a briefing schedséeECF No. 97, pursuant {
which the Moving Defendants filed the instant Motid®ee general§ECF No. 98.

REQUESTS FOR JUDICIAL NOTICE
l. Legal Standard

“Generally, district courts may not consider material outside the pleadings
assessing the sufficiency of a complaint under Rule 12(b)(6) of the Federal Rules
Procedure.”Khoja, 899 F.3cdat 998 (citing Lee v. City of Los Angele250 F.3d 668, 68
(9th Cir. 2001). “There are two exceptions to this rule: the incorporabpneference
doctrine, and judicial notice undeederal Rule of Evidence 2011d.

Pursuant td-ederal Rule of Evidence 2@, “[tlhe court may judicially notice
fact that is not subject to reasonable dispute because it: (1) is generally knowrthei
trial court’s territorial jurisdiction; or (2) can be accurately and readily ohéted from
sources whose accuracy cannot reasonably be questidtfectdrdingly,‘[a] court may

take judicial notice of matters of public record without converting a motion to disnos

a motion for summary judgmetit. Khoja, 899 F.3d at 999 (quotingee 250 F.3d at 689).

“But a court cannot take judicial notice of disputed facts contained in such
records. Id. (citing Leg 250 F.3d at 689).

“Even if a document is not attached to a complaint, it may be incorporat
reference into a complaint if the plaintiff refers extensively to the document (
document forms the basis of the plaintiff's claintJhited States v. Ritchi@42 F.3d 903
908 (9th Cir. 2003jciting Van Buskirkv. Cable News Network, In@84 F.3d977,980
(9th Cir. 2002)Branch v. Tunnelll4 F.3d 449, 453%4 (9th Cir. 1994)pverruled on othe
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grounds by Galbraith v. Cnty. of Santa ClaB97 F.3d 1119 (9th Cir. 2002¥,enture
Assoc. Corp. v. Zenith Data Sys. CoA87 F.2d 429, 431(7th Cir. 1993)){[T] he merg

mention of the existence of a document is insufficient to incorporate the contents of

documentunderRitchie” Khoja, 899 F.3d at 1002 (quotirigptoSettlement v. Eisenberng

593 F.3d 1031, 1038 (9th Cir. 2010Nonetheless, a document may still form the bas

the plaintiff's claim where “the claim necessarily depended on the[ documét{citing

Knievel v. ESPN393 F.3d 1068, 1076 (9th C2005)). ‘However, if the document mergly

is of

creates a defense to the welikd allegations in the complaint, then that document dig not

necessarily form the basis of the complaind.
When a document is incorporated by reference, “the district courtrewtysuch :

document as part of the complaint, and thus may assume that its contents are

purposes of a motion to dismiss under Rule 12(b)(Ritthie 342 F.3d at 90&ee alsa

Marder v. Lopez450 F.3d 445, 448 (9th Cir. 2006) (“The court raat . . . a docume

=D

true

nt

[incorporated by reference] as ‘part of the complaint, and thus may assume that its¢onte

are true for purposes of a motion to dismiss under Rule 12(b)(6).”) (¢Ritctie 342

F.3d at 908) Nonetheless, “it is improper tosasne the truth of an incorporated document

if such assumptions only serve to dispute facts stated in-glealled complairit. Khoja,
899 F.3d at 1003.
II.  The Moving Defendants’ Request for Judicial Notice

The MovingDefendants ask the Courtitacorporag by referencainedocuments:

(1) Center for Drug Evaluation & ResearthS. Food & Drug Admin., Summa

Yy

Review for Regulatory Action for Application No. 2000630rig1s000 (Sept.

10, 2014),available athttp://www.accessdata.fda.gov/drugsatfda daizs/n

2014/2000630rig1s000SumR.pdidfs.’ RINEx. A, ECF N0.98-3), which
the Moving Defendants offer “for background facts about the Light Stud

y and

the FDA'’s regulatory process with respect to Contrave, including that the
Light Study launched in June 20%2th more than 8,900 patients; the Light

Study was initially designed to potentially satisfy the FDA'’s poatketing
requirement; the FDA agreed that if the study met certain condi
Orexigen’s previously denied New Drug Application . . . could

15
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(2)

3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

resubmitted; Orexigen resubmitted the NDA in December 2013; and the
approved Contrave in September 20k&éDefs.’ RIN at 4-5;

U.S. Patent No. 8,969,371 (filed July 2, 201@%fs.” RIN Ex.B, ECF No.

98-4), which the Moving Defendants offer “for @deground facts about

FD?

Orexigen’s U.S. patent Application and the issuance of the Company’s

patent,” including “the datefOrexigen]filed a provisional and full patent

application; that the U.S. Application included the 25% Interim Analysis data;

and whenhe[USPTO]. . . published the ‘371 patenséeDefs.” RIN at 5
Orexigen Therapeutics, Inc., Current Report (Forid) §Mar. 3, 2015)

available at http://www.sec.gov/edgar/searchedgar/companysearch.
(Defs.” RIN Ex.C, ECF No0.98-5), which theMoving Defendants offer “sp

html

the Court has a complete picture of the information provided to investors or
March 3, 2015-including robust cautionary language about the 25% Interim

Analysis data that is omitted by Plaintiff from the Complairaid

“‘understand the context in which the alleged misrepresentations were |[made

and . . . additional disclosures made by Defendants at the same de8g,

Defs.”RJN at 5

Simos Simeonidis, RBC Capital Marke@rexigen Therapeutics Inc: LIGHT

Interim Data Reveal Contrave Positive CV Effect; Extend IP by 7 Years

Equity Research: First Glance (Mar. 3, 201B¢fs.” RIN Ex.D, ECF No.
98-6), which the Moving Defendants offer “for what was said therein
when,” specifically, that “the obvious caveat . . . is that [thpe2Bentinterim
Analysis data] was an early, interim look, based on 25% of the eveats
Defs.” RIN at 56 (quotingDefs.” RIN Ex. D at 46)

Paul Matteis & Jason M. Gerberry, Leerink Partners LI@exigen

Therapeutics, Inc.: 25% Interim LIGHT AnalyS&ows Stat. Sig Contraye

Benefit on CV OutcomdMar. 3, 2015) Defs.’ RIN Ex.E, ECF N0.98-7),

and

which the Moving Defendants offer “for what was said therein and when,”
specifically, that “the data should be interpreted with cautious optimism due

to the snall number of eventsseeDefs.’ RIN at 6 (quotindpefs.” RIN EX.
E at 51)

Matt Herper,The FDA Is Forcing Orexigen to Do a Second Safety Study
Because of Contrave Disclosuye@svw.forbes.com (Mar. 3, 2015, 3:33 PM),

available athttp://www.forbes.com/sites/matthewherper/2015/03/03itllae
will -force-orexigento-do-a-secondsafetystudybecausef-contrave
disclosures/Pefs.’ RIN Ex.F, ECF N0.98-8), whichthe MovingDefendants

offer “to show the timing and content of an FDA spokesperson’s statement

16
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(7)

(8)

9)

The Moving Defendarng also ask the Court to take judicial notice of the follow

document;

(10)

as reported on Forbes.com, including that the March 3 Forbes Articl
published hours after the March 3K8 and the FDA spokesperss
characterized the 25% Interim Analysis data as ‘preliminary,” ‘far
unreliable to conclude arhyihg,” and ‘should not be interpreted to sugg
that Contrave reduces the risk for [CV] eventsg&Defs.’ RIN at 6 (quoting
Defs.’RIN Ex. F at 57)

Matt Herper,Top FDA Official Says Orexigen Study Result ‘Unreliak
‘Misleading,” www.forbes.com (Mar. 5, 2015, 5:28 PMayvailable at
http://www.forbes.com/sites/matthewherper/2015/03/05itiapofficial -
saysorexigendataunreliablelikely-false/ Defs.” RIN Ex. G, ECF No.
98-9), which the Moving Defendants offer “so the Court has the all
corrective disclosure document before it in deciding Defendants’ Moger
Defs.’RJN at 6

Press Release, Orexigen Therapeutics, Inc., Takeda Pharmaceutic
Orexigen Therapeutics Announce Termination of the Cardiovas
Outcomes Study (Light Study) of the Obesity Drug Contrave (naltrexong

and bupropion HCI) (May 12, 2015available at http://ir.orexigen.comy

phoenix.zhtml?c=207034&p=iralewsArticle&ID=2046959 Defs.” RJIN
Ex. H, ECF N0.98-10) which the Moving Defendants offer “for facts ab
the timing and content of Orexigen and Takeda’s announcement of the
Study’s termination-including that the companies issued the press re
four days after Defendants’ statements to investors on May 8, 201}

announced that they had accepted the Light Study Executive St
Committee’s . . . recommendation to terminate the Light StusBeDefs.’
RJN at 6 and

Orexigen Therapeutics, Inc., Registration Statement (Fo8h (Slar. 16,
2015) Pefs.”RJIN Ex.I, ECF N0.98-11) which the Moving Defendants off
“for the fact that it states the ‘Proposed Maximum Offering Price Per S
of $7.08 is just an ‘estimate’ made pursuant to Rule 457(h) of the Sec
Act of 1933 ‘solely for purposes of calculating the registration feseéRJIN
at 7 (quotingDefs.” RIN Ex. | at 68)

Exhibit 3 to Plaintiff-Appellant’'s Motion for Judicial NoticeKhoja v.
Orexigen Therapeutics, IndNo. 1656069 (9th Cir. filed Dec. 2, 2016), EC
No. 144, which is a March 8, 2016 article titled “Effect of Naltrexe
Buproprion on Major Adverse Cardiovascular Egem Overweight ang

17
15-CV-540 JLS (JLB)

e wa
DN
too
jest

e,

eged

als
cular
> HCI

Dut

 Ligh
ease
b, an
eerin

<l
hare
uritie

ing




O 00 N oo o b W N BB

N NN N NDNNNNRRRRRR R R R R
oo ~NI O 01 N O N R O O 0o N o 01N 0O N RO

Obese Patients With Cardiovascular Risk FactArfRandomized Clinical

Trial,” co-authored by Steven E. Nissen, M.D., and published idabenal
of the American Medical Associati(Defs.” RIN Ex. K, ECF No.&13), and
which the Moving Defendants offer “only [for] the existence of the art
and the fact that Dr. Nissen and hisatghors made three public stateme
about the termination of the Light Study: (i) thejhe [ESC] recommends
trial termination on May 12, 2015, and [Orexigen and Takeda] agieéd

that ‘[tjhe academic leadership of the [Light Study] recommended termir
of the trial and the sponsor agreed[’;] and (iii) that “[tlhe study’s acad
leadership recommended termination of the triadgeDefs.” RIN at 78

(quotingDefs.”RIN Ex. K at 87, 88, 91)

The Court previously incorporated by reference Exhibits A throu@ebECF No. 76 a
18. LeadPlaintiff did not contest on appeal the propriety of the Court’s decision
Exhibits B, C, and H, and the Ninth Circuit affirmed the Court’s ruling as to Exhib
D, E, F, G, and 1.SeeDefs.’ RIN at 3see also Khoja899 F.3d a1002-08. The Moung
Defendants therefore contend that the Court may incorporate by reference ExH
through I in deciding the instant MotiorseeDefs.” RIN at 3. The Moving Defendant
additionally urge the Court to take judicial notice of Exhibit K, which “is aliplyb

available medicajournal article thaPlaintiff asked the Ninth Circuit to take judicial noti

icle,
Nts
d

1atior
emic

[
as tc
ts A,

1ibits

S

ce

of on appeal.”ld. (emphasis in original)In a footnote, Lead Plaintiff objects to Exhiblits

C, D, and E as “improperly offered to characterize the &igsim data”; Exhibits F an
G as “improperly offered to characterize disclosures to the market”; and Exhibif
“improperly offered to prove truth of matters asserted.” Opp’n at 1 n.2.

Plaintiff does not object to the incorporation by referericExiibits A or B, anc
the Court finds that it is appropriate to incorporate those documents by reference
limited purposes enumerated in the Moving Defendants’ RIN.

As for Exhibit C,the ConsolidatedComplaint refers extensively tihe March3,
2015 Form &, see, e.g.CC 11 8788, which also forms the basis of Lead Plainti
claims predicated upon false and misleading omissions in that very fiieg, e.g.d.
19187-92. Although “what inferences [the C]ourt may draw from [the] incaiea
111
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document should . . . be approached with cauteeg’Khoja899 F.3d at 1003, Exhibit
IS appropriately incorporated by reference.

Regarding Exhibits D and E, the Ninth Circuit concluded that “the reports for
basis of Khoja’s claim that the market relied on Orexigen’s claims about the 25 y
interim results after ‘numerous security analysts’ followed and wrote repbdst
Orexigen.” Id. at 1004. The Ninth Circuit therefore held that this Court “did not abu
discretion by icorporating these reportsid. The Court therefore concludes that it n
incorporate by reference these documents.

Regarding Exhibit F, the Ninth Circuit noted thiatad Plaintiff “claims that
Orexigen’s response to the article was truly part of its scheme to inflate its shoe&”

and consequently concluded that “because the article triggered the alleged sch

article formed the basis of the scheméd’. at 1004. The court therefore held that {

Court “did not abuse its discretion by incorgating the article.”ld. The Court therefor
againconcludes that it may incorporate by reference Exhibit F.

As for Exhibit G, the Ninth Circuit reasoned that, according toGbasolidatec
Complaint, “the article revealed the materiality of Orexigemisrepresentations ar
omissions about the 25 percent interim resulisl.”’at 1005. “Because such materia
forms the basis of Count I, the district court did not abuse its discretion by incorpt
this article.” Id. The Court therefore conclud#sat it is appropriate to incorporate
reference Exhibit G.

Lead Plaintiff does not object to the Moving Defendants’ request that the
incorporate by reference Exhibitsddl. Regarding Exhibit H, it is clear that the May |
2015 press release forms the basis of Lead Plaintiff’s clame€C 1 126; consequentl
the Court may incorporate ExhibitiHto the Consolidated ComplainfAs for Exhibit I,
the Ninth Circuit concluded that “the district court did not abuse its discretic
incorporaing this document into the Complaint” because certain of Lead Plair
allegations concerning the March 13, 2015 Fonr® ‘®orm the basis of [his] claims
111
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Khoja, 899 F.3d at 1006. Accordingly, the Court concludes that it may prg
incorporde by reference Exhibit I.

perly

Finally, regarding Exhibit K, the Court may take judicial notice that Plaintiff squght

judicial notice of the underlying article before the Ninth Circuit. Nonetheless, itivioa|
inappropriate to take judicial notice of the facts contained within the filing. The
thereforeDENIES the Moving Defendants’ request that the Court take judicial noti
Exhibit K to show that the ESC recommended termination of the Light Study on M
2015

Accordingly, the CourGRANTS IN PART AND DENIES IN PART the Moving
Defendants’ RINECF No0.98-15), as outlined abovespecifically, the Court incorporaty
by reference Exhibits A through | but declines to take judicial notice of Exhibit K.
lll.  Lead Plaintiff's Request for Judicial Notice

Although Lead Plaintiff did not formally request judicial notice or incorporatio
reference of any documents, liees offer two exhibits attached to the Gobe
Declaration

(1) Exhibit A to Debtor's Motion for Entry of Interim and Final Ordg
(I) Authorizing Debtor to (A) Continue Prepetition Insurance Prog
(B) Pay Any Prefpetition Premiums and Related Obligations;

I
Cour
ce of

Ay 12

D
(7]

n by

lle

1%

pI'S
ram;
and

(C) Renew or Enter into New Insurance Arrangements; and (II) Granting

Related Reliefln re Orexigen Therapeutics, In@&No. 18-10518KG (Bankr.
D. Del. filed Mar.12, 2018), ECF No. 11 (Pl's RINEx. 1, ECF No
103-2), which is a list of Orexigen’s insurance policies that Lead Pla
offers to show that “th@Moving] Defendants are covered by a wasting
million Directors and Officers insurance policgg€eOpp’n at 1 n.1; and

(2) Michael O'Riordan,LIGHT Stopped: Contrave CVD Safety Study Ha
Following Premature Release of Datawvw.medscape.corfMay 12, 2015),
available athttps://www.medscape.com/viewarticle/844575 prité RIN
Ex. 2, ECF No. 103), which Lead Plaintiff offers to show that the JAN
article does not create any ambiguity as to the data that the Light Stug
stoppedseeOpp’n at 20 n.14.

The Court declines to take judicial notice of Exhibit 1. Although the Court may

judicial notice of the fact that Defendants filed a Schedule of InsuranceeBoii
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Orexigen’s bankruptcy proceeding, the Court cannot take judicial notice of the
contained n the filing, including the existenca amount of a Directors and Office
Insurance Policy covering the Moving DefendanBee Khoja899 F.3d at 999. In ar

» fact

rs

1y

event, the existence of such a policy is not relevant to the issues raised by the Motion.

The Court also declines to take judicial notice of Exhibit 2. Again, thet@oay
take judicial notice that the article was published,iboannot take judicial notice of th
facts alleged therein, especially not to resolve a factual dispute at the pleagedsste
Khoja, 899 F.3d at 1000 (concluding that it is improper to take judicial noticdafuament
when “there is a reasonable dispute as to what [it] establishes”) (qRatingRodriguez
v. United State655 F.3d 1182, 1193 (9th Cir. 2011Accordingly, the CourDENIES
Lead Plaintiff's Request for Judicial Notice.

THE MOVING DEFENDANTS’ MOTION TO DISMISS
l. Legal Standard

Rule 12(b)(6) permits a party to raise by motion the defense that the con
“fail[s] to state a claim upon which relief can be granted,” generally referrecatmasion
to dismiss. The Court evaluates whether a complaint states a cognizabiledegeand
sufficient facts in light of Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 8(a), which requires a “shg
plain statement of the claim showing that the pleader is entitled to relief.” Althoug}
8 “does not require ‘detailed factual allegations,’ . . . it demands more than an una
the-defendanunlawfully-harmedme accusation.”Ashcroft v. Igbgl 556 U.S. 662, 67
(2009) (quotingBell Atl. Corp. v. Twomb|y650 U.S. 544, 555 (2007)). In other words
plaintiff's obligation to provide the ‘groundsf dis ‘entitle[ment] to relief’ requires mof
than labels and conclusions, and a formulaic recitation of a cause of action’s eleme
not do.” Twombly 550 U.S. at 555 (alteration in original). “Nor does a complaint su
if it tenders ‘naked assertion[s]’ devoid of ‘further factual enhancemelayal, 556 U.S,
at 678 (alteration in original) (quotingvombly 550 U.S. at 557).

“To survive a motion to dismiss, a complaint must contain sufficient factual n

accepted as true, to ‘state a claim to relief that is plausible on its fakk.{fuoting
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Twombly 550 U.S. at 570%kee alsd~ed. R. Civ. P. 12(b)(6). A claim is facially plausi

when the facts pled “allow[] the court to draw the reasonable inference that ¢nelalf

is liable forthe misconduct alleged.Id. (citing Twombly 550 U.S. at 556). That is not
say that the claim must be probable, but there must be “more than a sheer possibil

defendant has acted unlawfullyld. (citing Twombly 550 U.S. at 556). “[F{ds that are

‘merely consistent with’ a defendant’s liability” fall short of a plausible entitlem
relief. 1d. (quotingTwombly 550 U.S. at 557). Further, the Court need not accept a
“legal conclusions” contained in the complaimd. at 68—79 (citing Twombly 550 U.S.
at 555). This review requires “contesqpecific” analysis involving the Court’s “judicij
experience and common senskl’at 679. “[W]here the welpleaded facts do not pern

the court to infer more than the mere possibility of misconduct, the complaint had-all

but it has not ‘show[n}—‘that the pleader is entitled to relief.Td. (quoting Fed. R. Ciy.

P. 8(a)(2)).
Further,“[c] laims brought under Rule 165 . . . must meet Federal Rule of Ci
Procedure 9(b)’s particularity requirement that ‘[ijn all averments of fraud or mjshes

circumstances constituting fraud or mistake shall be stated with particulahityg’Dura
Pharm, Inc. Sec. Litig.452 F. Supp. 2d 1005, 1016 (S.D. Cal. 2@@&gration in original
(quoting Fed. R. Civ. P. 9(b)) (citirig re Daou Sys., Inc. Sec. Litig11 F.3d 1006, 101
(9th Cir. 2005)cert. deniedb46 U.S. 1172 (2006 ourish v. Cal. Amfler, 191 F.3d
983, 993 (9th Cir. 1999)). “In addition, in 1995, Congress enacted the Privatéi&e
Litigation Record Act of 1995RSLRA) and altered the pleading requirements in priy
securities fraud litigation by requiring a complaint plead with particularity both falsit)

Dle

to
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scienter.” Id. at 1016-17 (quotingDaouSys, 411 F.3d at 1014) (internal quotation marks

omitted).

The Court will grant leave to amend unless it determines that no modified con;
“consistent with thehallengedleading . . [will] cure the deficiency.”DeSoto v. Yelloy
Freight Sys., In¢.957 F.2d 655, 658 (9th Cir. 1992) (quottchriber Distrib. Co. v. Sex\
Well Furniture Co, 806 F.2d 1393, 1401 (9th Cir. 1986)).
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[I.  Analysis

Lead Plaintiff allegestwo suviving causes of action: (ount | forviolations of
8 10(b) of thel934 Act and Rule 10i5(b) againstll Defendants, and2f Count 11l for
violations of § 20(a) of the Exchange Act against Mhaving Defendants. SeeCC
19142-55. The Courtaddresses each in turn below.

A.  Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5

“Section 10(b) of the. .1934[Act] forbids (1) the ‘use or employ[ment] . . . of g
. . . deceptive device,’ (2) ‘in connection with the purchase or sale of any securit)
(3) ‘in contravention of [SEC]‘rules and regulations.”Dura Pharm., Inc. v. Broud®44
U.S. 336, 341 (2005) (quoting 15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)). “Rule-&Gbrbids, among othg

things, the making of any ‘untrue statement of a material fact’ or the omission

mateial fact ‘necessary in order to make the statements made . . . not misleadichg.

(quoting 17 CF.R. 8§ 240.1065). “The basic elements of a Rule 1Blxrlaim, therefore
are: (1) a material misrepresentation or omission of fact, (2) scienter, (3) a conrveitii
the purchase or sale of a security, (4) transaction and loss causation, and (5) €
loss.” Daou Sys.411 F.3cat 1014 (citing Dura Pharms.544 U.S. at 34442).

The Moving Defendants move to dismiss with prejudiead Plaintiff’'s Section
10(b) and Rule 10b claims for failure adequately to pleddl) scienteras to all
misrepresentationand(2) loss causation as to the Maigh2015 misrepresentatianSee
Mot. at 1-3, 20.

1. Scienter

A private securities plaintiff must “state with particularitgtagiving rise to a stron
inference that the defendant acted with the required state of mirid” U.S.C.
8 78u4(b)(2). The “required state of mind” is “scita,” i.e., “a mental state embracil
intent to deceive, manipulate, or defraué&rnst & Ernst v. Hochfelde#25 U.S. 185, 19
n.12 (1976)in re Silicon Graphics Inc. Sec. Litjgl83 F.3d 970, 975 (9th Cir. 199¢

abrogatedon other groundsy S. Ferry LP, No. 2 v. Killinger542 F.3d 776 (9th Cir.
2008);In re Peerless Sys. Corp. Sec. Liti82 F.Supp.2d 982, 98438 (S.D. Cal. 2002).
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“[T]he PSLRA requires plaintiffs to plead, at a minimum, particular facts giving riae to
strong inference ofleliberate or conscious recklessnesSilicon Graphics 183 F.3d at
979;In re Wet Seal, Inc. Sec. Litjg518 F.Supp.2d 1148, 1157 (C.D. Cal. 2007).
Recklessness amounts to “an extreme departure from the standardsafyocdre, angd

... presets a danger of misleading buyers and sellers that is either known to the defende
or is so obvious that the actor must have been aware oDSAM Global Value Fund vy.
Altris Software, InG.288 F.3d 385, 389 (9th Cir. 2002) (quotidgllinger v. TitanCap.
Corp, 914 F.2d 1564, 1569 (9th Cir. 1990))o satisfy this pleading requirement, “the
complaint must contain allegations of specific ‘contemporaneous statements or conditior
that demonstrate the intentional or the deliberately reckless fataesleading nature af
the statements when madeRonconi v. Larkin253 F.3d 423, 432 (9th Cir. 2001);re
Levi Strauss & Co. Sec. Litigg27 F.Supp.2d 965, 988 (N.D. Cal. 2007Y.he Court mus

consider competing inferences that could be drawn in favor of plaintiffs or defendants at

—F

determine whether plaintiffs have pled a “strong inferencescantemwnhich is “cogent
and at least as compelling as any opposing inference of nonfraudulent irftehabs,
Inc. v. Makor Issues & Rights, L{d51 U.S. 308, 314 (2007).
a.  The Ninth Circuit’'s Decision itKhoja
As an initial matter, Lead Plaintiff contends that the Ninth Circuit Kindja
reasoned that almost all of the statements identified in the Complaint adequately pl
material misstatements or omissions, amith the requisite scientér Opp'n at 14
(emphasis added). The Moving Defendants rejoinltbat “Plaintiff misreads the Ninth
Circuit’'s decision and argues that court already decided scienter. It did not.” Reply at 1
The Moving Defendants are correct. The Ninth Circuit made explicit thestdlit

92)

made no determination as to the sufficienci@ddPlaintiff's allegations of Defendant
scienter. “The districtourt’s dismissal of Count | was based on the elementdofyfa
and materiality. Accordirly, the analysis here is limited to those issu&hbja, 899 F.3d
at 1008 (citingn re Gilead Scis. Sec. Litigh36 F.3d 1049, 1055 (9th Cir. 2008)).
111

24
15-CV-540 JLS (JLB)




O 00 N oo o b W N BB

N NN N NDNNNNRRRRRR R R R R
oo ~NI O 01 N O N R O O 0o N o 01N 0O N RO

b. TheMarch 3, 2015tatements

Lead Plaintiff alleges that Orexigen’s March 3, 2015 Fork 8nd press releas

werematerially false and misleadinmpcauseheyfailed to disclose thdithe 25% study
results. .. were‘unreliablg]”” and that “Orexigen had made a request with tHePTO
in January 2015 to have the patent publicly dissemirfatéq. ] 92 94 see also Khojg
899 F.3d at 1004010, 1012 The Moving Defendants contend that Lead Plaintiff
failed to allege that any of them had the requisite fraudulent intee¢Mot. at 12-16.

Specifically, the Moving Defendants urge that any inference of scieateerning the

undisclosed unreliability of the 25 percent interim resultandercut by the cautionayy

language appearing in the March 3, 2015 Forkh@ncerning thereliminary nature o
the data.See idat 14. As for the omission of Defendants’ role concerning the USP]
publication of the '371 Patent from the press reledseMoving Defendants argue tf
the Consolidatd Complaint contains no allegations thia¢ Moving Defendants believg
that the statements were misleading or intended to mislead investors by omitting ag

detail about Orexigen’s role in the procesSee id.at 15-16. Finally, the Moving

Defendants contend that Lead Plaintiffadditional allegations concerning thei

compensation, stock options, and the ForB Begistration Statement do not give risg
a strong inference of sciente8ee idat 16-18.

Lead Plaintiff counters that “[f]alsity and scienter often go hiarland” Opp’'n at

13 (citingDaouy, 411 F.3d at 1015and that the Ninth Circuit’s finding of material falsj

should be dispositiveSee idat 1718. Further,as to the disclosure of thmreliable25
percent interim results, Lead Plaintiff claims thathas &ged that the FDA told Narac
and Klassen that the 25 percent interim results had “a high degree of uncérihiratiy
16, and thatHagar—as a signatory to the March 3, 201K &nd as the Chief Busine
Officer, Treasurer, and CFO of Orexigefwas awae, or deliberately disregarded, 1
significance of releasing the 25% interim dathd” at 16 n.7 (citing CC 1 387; Berson
v. Applied Signal Tech., Inc527 F.3d 982, 989 (9th Cir. 2008Yjedina v. Clovis
Oncology, Inc.215 F. Supp. 3d 1094, 1177.(Colo. 2017)) As for the publication of th
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‘371 Patent, Lead Plaintiff claims that “because each of the Defendants was awar
materiality of the omitted information, it was reckless of them to fail to disclose it in
March 3, 2015 press edse.”ld. at 18. Moreover, “[b]ecause [revealing the interim res

publicly] ‘impact[ed] the financial health of Orexigen,” Defendants were obvig

motivated to conceal responsibility for their failed gamble that Contrave pdoaitieart

benefit,”id. at 19 (quotingKhoja, 899 F.3d at 101A.3), and “Defendants were aware t
they filed the patent confidentially and that they did so to maintain the appearance t
were maintaining the secrecy of the study datd.(citing CC Y 6170).

The Court concludes that Lead Plaintiff adequately has alleged facts giving
a strong inference of scienter as to Klassen and Narachi's alleged material onuss
March 3, 2015, but not as to Hagan'’Regarding the March 3, 2015 disclosure @&
unreliable 25 percent interim data in the Fonig,8 ead Plaintiff alleges that, “[d}ing a

June 4, 2014 meeting about Defendants’ breach, the reBvnded Defendants Naracg

and Klassen that 25% interim results haarbdighdegree of uncertainty and were likely
change with the accumulation adiditional datd. CC  59see also id] 10 The Ninth
Circuit held that, “once Orexigen chose to tout the apparently positive 25 percant
results, Orexigen had the obligation also to disclose that they were likely unréiadbid
the Consolidated Complaint sufficiently alleges that Orexigen failed t&€le.Khoja899
F.3d at 1010. Lead Plaintiff therefore alleges that, despite knowing that the 25t
interim results were unreliable, Klassen and Narachi failed to disclose as much
March 3, 2015 &. At the pleading stage, these allegations give rise to an inferel
scienter“at least as compelling as any opposing inference of nonfraudulent’inteee
Tellabs 551 U.Sat314.

Although the presence of cautionary language in the Felknd8es give rise to an

inference of nonfraudulent intesge, e.gMot. at 14;Defs.” RIN Ex. C, the inference th
Klassen and Narachi acted witteliberate or conscious recklessnéssat least a
compelling. Defendants could have announced the publication of the '371 Patent

touting the 25 percent interim resuigeCC {70 n.18,0r they could have disclosed th
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the 25 percent interim results were considered unrelig®ée Khoja899 F.3d at 101(
Instead, Defendants published the data with certain qualifiers but, as the Nint
recognized, telling investors tht the data might change is different from saying the
already hasa high degree of uncertaintgnd is likely to changé Id. Consequentlythe
inference that Klassen and Narachsleadingly disclosed the unreliable 25 percent ints
data artificially to inflate the price for Orexigen’s stock is equally compellibge, e.g|
CC 11 6971, 145.

As the Moving Defendants note, howevdtlhere is no allegation that Hagz:
attendedhe June 4, 2014 meeting, or that any information from that meeting wa|
transmitted to him.” Mot. at 13 n.1&nd “[w]ithout allegations that each of tioving]
Defendants that signed vario[af Orexigen’s]public filings knew those public filigs
contained misstatements, thidoving] Defendants signatures on those public filing
alone does not give rise to a strong inference of sciénfeln re Hansen Nat. Cory
Sec. Litig, 527 F. Supp. 2d 1142, 1160 (C.D. ijaudgment entere®007 WL3274427
(Oct. 16, 2007) see alsoMot. at 13 n.10 (citingin re LDK Solar Sec. Litig.No.
CO0705182WHA, 2008 WL 4369987, && {N.D. Cal. Sept. 24, 2008)

Lead Plaintiff therefore urges that the Light Study and its 25 percent interim |
were of such importance to Orexigen that Hagan must have known of thehilirebé
the preliminary data, allowing the Court to conclude that Lead Plaintiff hagalestrong
inference of scienter as to Hag&eeOpp'n at 14-15 17-18. In so arguing, Lead Plainti
relies heavily on the Ninth Circuit’s decisionsSouth Ferry 542 F.3d 776, anBerson
527 F.3d 982. The Moving Defendants counter that this ‘@peeations” inference “fall
to impute knowledge to Hagan, who is not alleged to have knowledge of the unnam
employee’s opinion.”"Replyat 7-8.

The Courtmust agree with the Moving Defendants. Lead Plaintiff alleges
Hagan ‘Served at all releant times as th€ompany’s Chief Business Officer, Treasu
and Acting CFQ CC 1 36, and that his “individual goamphasized developing Contrg
for markets both at home and abrgaldl.  82. But, unlike Klassen and Naradge, e.g.
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id. 1111 10, 3436, 52, 59, there are no allegations that Hagan ever met with the FDA

oI We

in any way involved in the Light Study. Rather, Lead Plaintiff alleges that Hagan “was t

‘[e]ffectively lead and manage the finance and accounting teams as Orexigen tsansitic

into a commercial stage compargnd ‘[llead the ROW [rest of the world] partneri
process and make significant progress toward establishing partnership(s) to further

and commercialize Contrave outside North Amefticad.  82. Consequentlyalthough

Lead Plaintiff's allegations do reveal that Hagan's responsgsliat Orexigen werle

ng
deve

connected to Contraxgenerally they appear to have been related more to its financial anc

marketing aspectsThe Court therefore cannot infer that the FDA's interpretation o
25 percent results must have been known to Hagan.

NeitherSouth Ferrynor Bersoncompels a different conclusion. South Ferryfor
example, the Ninth Circuit concluded that allegations concerning management’s rol
company may independently satisfy the PSLRA where they are particular and sugg

defendants had actual access to the disputed inforrhatidmay conceivably satisfy the

PSLRA standard in a more bare form, without accompanying particularized allegat
rare circumstances where the nature of the relevant fact is of such prominence thait
be‘absurd to suggest that management was without knowledge of the rhdig.F.3d
at 786. The first circumstance is not applicable to Hagan, given the absence
allegations that he was present at the June 4, 2014 meeting with the FDA or later d
it with Klassen and Narachi. As for the second circumstance, the Ninth CircuB e
as an examplef the “exceedingly rare category of cases in which the core oper
inference, without more, is sufficient under the PSLRA. Ferry 542 F.3d at 785 n.3.

In Berson which the Ninth Circuit discussed extensively in determining whe
Orexigen had duty to disclose the unreliability of the 25 percent interim da@aKhoja
899 F.3d at 1010, the defendant company received “stop work” orders from two ¢
agencies that accounted fgrproximatel\80 percent of the company’s revenue, mea
that the defendant company immediately ceased to earn money from those two ¢

and “signal[ling] a heightened risk that the company nefeuld] earn the money.’See
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Berson 527 F.3d at 984 (emphasis in original). Nonetheless, the defendant cg
“continued to count the stopped work as part of its ‘backl@gterm the compan
define[d] as the dollar value of the work it ha[d] contracted to do but ha[d]n
performed.” Id. In concluding that the plaintiffs alleged a strong inference of scient
behalf ofthe defendant company’s CEO and CFO, the Ninth Circuit reasoned tha
hard to believe that they would not have known about-wtmi orders that alleged
halted tens of millions of dollars of the company’s world” at 988.

Unlike thestop work orders iBerson the FDA’'s comments to Klassen and Narg
concerning the unreliability of the 25 percent interim data were not of such importan
“it would be ‘absurd’ to suggest that [Hagan] was without knowledge of the m4

particularly given the absence of any allegations that he was involvedegthatory side

of Orexigen in general @f Contrave in particularSee S. Ferry542 F.3d at 786 (quotin
Applied Signgl527 F.3d at 988). The Court therefore concludes that Lead Plaint
failed to allege facts giving rise to a strong infereimetilagan signed the March 3, 20
8-K with deliberate recklessness to the unreliability of the 25 percent interim 1
reported therein.

A similar analysis applies to tladlegedly material omission from the March 3, 2(
press release concerning Ogeda’s role in the publishing of the 78 Patent. Lea
Plaintiff alleges at length that it was “Narachi and Klassen [who] embarked
deliberately reckless scheme to circumvent the FDA and to make the data public
the filing of a U.S. paten@indwho later “rescinded the Company’s nonpublication req
to have the USPTO accomplish for Defendants indirectly what they knew they
prohibited from again doing directl namely, revealing seemingly positive, |
statistically suspect, 25% interim Light Study dat@C 1] 12, 14 (emphasis omittedyee
alsoid. ff 6%73. Consequently, although Lead Plaintiff adequately alleges a {
inference that Narachi and Klassen knew that the statement in the March 3, 201
release that “the USPTO published the patent and supporting documentatio
misleading,see id.{ 94, the same cannot be said of Hafgarthe same reasons that |
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Court cannot infer that Hagan must have known that the FDA considered the interim :

percent data unreliable.
Accordingly, the CourGRANTS IN PART AND DENIES IN PART the Moving

Defendants’ Motion as to the Moving Defendants’ scienter as to the May 3, 2015 materi

omissions. Specifically, the CoUBRANTS the Motion as to Hagan amENIES the
Motion as to Klassen anddxachi.
c. Orexigen’s May 8, 201Statements
Lead Plaintiff also alleges that Defendants’ May 8, 2015 ForsaBd 10Q and

earnings conference call were materially misleading because thepmsaeted that the

Light Study was ongoing by failing to disclose thatB$C haderminated the Light 8ty
on March 26, 2015, and failed to disclose the 50 percent interim reSaek€C 1 7475,

100-12; see also Khoja899 F.3d at 1013.7. The Moving Defendants argue that Lead

Plaintiff fails to plead scienter as to either of these statements because “the Com

internally contradictory with respect to the alleged timing [thfe] Light Study

plain

termination,” Mot. at 18, which “should be dispositive that Defendants were¢ not

deliberately reckless in failing to disclose that the Light Study hadjealle been
terminated before May 8.1d. at 19 (citingTellabs 551 U.S. at 326d. at 33 (Alito, J.,

concurring)). Further, “the Complaint lacks any allegations suggesting that Deferdant

who said nothing about the 25% dafiéer March 3, 2015 . . —believed the failure to

disclose the 50% data risked misleading investolg.”(citing CC 1 99112). Finally,
“[tthe Complaint does not even attempt to connect the 2014 compensation
(17 76-79), the ‘welltimed’ February stock grant (1 84), or the3 $ 85) to the May
statements], a]nd there are still no allegations that Defendants sold any $tiock.”

goa

<

Lead Plaintiff counters that “[i]jt is now law of the case that the Complaint’s

allegations ‘support a plausible inference that the ESC terminatédgthteStudy before

May 2015[,]”" and, “[e]ven if the ESC had only recommended terminating the stud

Defendants nevertheless had a duty to disclose that development.” Opp’n at 20 (quoti

Khoja, 899 F.3d at 1014, citingl. at 1016). “Further, given how intimately each of t
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individual defendants was involved with the study, it is highly unlikely that any of
were unaware of the informationldl. at 20 n.12 (citinds. Ferry LR 542 F.3d at 786; C
19 16-11, 3344, 52, 61). As for the 50 percent interim data, “[tlhe fact that Defen
knew what the 50% data revealed well ahead of their May 2015 statements estab
inference that they were made with scientdd.”at 21-22 (citingMatrixx Initiatives, Inc.
v. Siracusanp563 U.S. 27, 50 (2011))Lead Plaintiff also urges that “[tjhe absencs
stock sales does not undermine the existence of scienter” and that “where, :
employee compensation is tied to facts of the alleged fraud, such ‘particu
allegations’ can establish scientetd. at 22 n.15 (citingMatrixx, 563 U.S. at 48\No. 84
Emp’r-Teamster Joint Council Pension Tr. Fund v. Am. W. Holding C88& F.3d 920
944 (9th Cir. 2003)).

The Court concludes that Lead Plaintiff adequately has alleged scientethas
Moving Defendant$or theallegedmaterial omissions from May 8, 201 light of the
Ninth Circuit’'s conclusion that Lead Plaintiff's “allegations support a plausibleente
that the ESC terminated the Light Study before May 204¢g”Khoja899 F.3d ai014,
the Court rejects the Moving Defendants’ argument that “the Complaint is intg
contradictory with respect to the alleged timing of Light Study terminatsmgMot. at
18, and in particular the Moving Defendants’ reliance on Exhibit K to their Requs

them

-
—

dants

ishes
of

1S he

arize

5 to

rnall

st fo

Judicial Noticesee id.at 18-19, of which the Court cannot properly take judicial notice.

See suprgpage20. The Court therefore accepts as its starting point that Lead Pl
plausibly allegesthat the Light Study had already been terminatelarch 26, 2015, an
that Dr.Nissen informed the Moving Defendants of this developm8et, e.g.CC | 21.

As to Klassen and Narachi, these allegations, coupled with Klassen'’s false st:

that the “Light Study is continuing and . . . it's an ongoing entity as of right now,” I8

(emphasis omitted), and Narachi’'s false assurance that Orexigen would destjc
decision taterminae the Light Studyjd. { 111, give rise to a strong inference of scier|
on behalf of Klassen and Naraels to their material omissions concerning the terming
of the Light Studyon May 8, 2015
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The question is closer concerning Hagaonetheless, the Court ultimate

concludes that Lead Plaintiff's allegations as to Hagan give rise to a strong inferg
scienter given Lead Plaintiff's allegations that Hagan knew of the March 26,
termination of the Light Studysee, e.g.d. T 21, yet signed the M&; 2015 Forms &
and 10Q that misleadingly omitted this material informatioSee, e.g.id.  37. Thsg
May 8, 2015 Form &, for example, “suggest[ed] that the Light Study was ongoiiag
9 101, by indicating that Orexigen’s “clinical trial program also includes a ddlibbs
placebecontrolled cardiovascular outcomes trial known as the Light Study.'f] 100
(emphasis omitted). Similarly, the May 8, 2015 Forr(Ql8lso described the Light Stu
as “continuing,” despite its prior terminatioBee idf 104. Coupled with Lead Plaintiff’
allegations that Hagan knew that the Light Study had already been ternfittee@ourt
concludes that these allegations give rise to a strong inference of scientnatinoth
Hagan as to his material omissions concerning the termination bigheStudy >

The same is true of Lead Plaintiff's alleged material omissions from May 8,
concerning the 50 percent interim data. The Court again begind_eatth Plaintiffs
allegationthat, on March 26, 2015he Moving Defendants “were actually shown the n
mature 50% data demonstrating that the cardiovascular benefit thea@pimpd earlie
touted on March 3, 2015 was falséd’ §74. The Ninth Circuit concluded that, “by touti

h

ence
201

(oX
<

2015

ore

=

ng

and publishing the ‘surprisingly’ positive 25 percent interim results, Orexigen crested it

own obligation to report that those results did not pan out after léhdja, 899 F.3d a
1017. Nonetheless, Lead Plaintiff alleges, when Klassen and Narachi participated

earnings call on May 8, 2015, they failed to disclose the 50 percent interim result

4 Further, unlike the details concerning the publication of the '371 Patent and the FDA'’s rsj
concerning the unreliability of the 25 percent iimteresults, “it is hard to believe thigiagan]would not
have knownabout thegermination ofan FDA-mandated study concerning Orexigen’s “primary proq
candidate.” SeeBerson 527 F.3d at 98&ee alsaCC 1 7.

® Because Narachi also signed the May2815 Form 14D, seeCC { 35, this reasoning would apj
equally to him as to that individual filing.
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when directly asked whether those results had been discl8se@C 1 10910. Again,
the Court concludes that these allegations give rise to a strong inference of scig
behalf of Klassen and Narachi as to their material omissions concerning the 50
interim results.

Given the Ninth Circuit's conclusion that “Orexigen created its own obligatig
report” the 50 percent interim resuseeKhoja, 899 F.3d at 1017, the Court also conclu
that Lead Plaintiff adequately has alleged scienter as to Hagan. Lead Plaintiff &l
May 8, 2015 “Form & failed to disclose that . . . the 50% interim data demonstrate
the Company’s prior representations about Contrave’s purported cardiovascular
were false.” CC { 101. Further, the May 8, 2015 Fora@I'tnisleadingly epresenteq
that ‘additional analysis of the interim results or new data from the continuing Light
including . . . the additional cardiovascular aumes trial, may produce negative
inconclusive results, or may be inconsistent with the conclusion that the interim a
was successful,” without disclosing that the Company knew that more mature 50%
data had already demonstrated that Contrave did not produce any heart benef
Company had earlier representedd. I 104 (emphasis otted). Again, coupled with
Lead Plaintiff’'s allegations that Hagan knew the 50 percent interim data and
contradicted the previously touted 25 percent interim data, the Court concludéesie
allegations give rise to a strong inference of delean behalf of Hagan as to his mate
omissions concerning those resllts.

The Court thereforBENIES the Moving Defendants’ Motion as to Lead Plainti
allegationsf the Moving Defendants’ scienter concerning the alleged material omig
from May 8, 2015
111
111

® Again, because Defendant Narachi also signed the May 8, 2015 FaRys&8CC 1 35, this reasonin
would apply equally to him as to that individual filing.
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2. Loss Causation

To demonstrate loss causation, a plaintiff must allege “a causal connection b
the material misrepresentation and the lod3ura Pharm, 544 U.Sat342;see alsdl5
U.S.C. § 78u4(b)(4). In other words, “the complaint must allege that the practices th
plaintiff contends are fraudulent were revealed to the market and causeduhieg
losses.” Metzler Inv. GMBH v. Corinthian Co8., Inc., 540 F.3d1049, 1063 (9th Cir.
2008) A corrective disclosure must reveal some aspect of the alleged fraud
market. SeelLentell v. Merrill Lynch & Caqg. 396 F.3d 161, 175 (2d Cir. 200!
Additionally, a plaintiffs allegations must reveal that “the defentharghare price fel
significartly after the truth became known.'Metzler, 540 F.3d at 1062 (quotirigura
Pharm, 544 U.S. at 347)The Ninth Circuitrecentlyhas clarified that the plaintiff mu
only allege “facts that, if taken as true, plausibly establish loss causatiar,'Glead,
536 F.3dat 1057, “suggesting that loss causation is a-ifaeinsive inquiry better suitg
for determination at trial than at the pleading stageudolph v. UTStarcoNo. C
07-04578 SI, 2008 WL 4002855, at *4 (N.D. Cal. Aug. 21, 2008) (citiegabe v. Erns
& Young, LLR 494 F.3d 418, 427 n.4 (3rd Cir. 200E)nergent Capital Inv. Mgmt., LL
v. Stonepath Grp., Inc343 F.3d 189, 197 (2d Cir. 2003Rule 9(b)s heightened pleadin
standard applies to allegations of loss causatiam.Pub. Emps. Ret. Fund v. Apollo Gr
Inc., 774 F.3d 598, 605 (9th Cir. 2014).

The Moving Defendants contend that Lead Plaintiff's claims predicated

material misrepresentations or omissions made on March 3, 2015, must be dismi

etwe

At the

to tr
5).

|

U)
~+

d
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STa 0O

upor

ssed

failure adequately to plead loss causati@eeMot. at 19. The Parties agree that two

alleged corrective disclosures are relevant to Lead Plaintiff's March 3, 2015 ,c
compare idat 19-20,with Opp’n at 2224: (1) the March 5, 2015 Forbes.com artidege
CC 11122-25; see als®efs! RIN Ex. G; and (2) Dr. Nissen’s May 12, 2015 press rels
SeeCC 11 12630.
111
111
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a. The March 5, 2015 Forbes.com Article

Lead Plaintiff alleges that an article published on March 5, 2015, by Forbes.q
which a top FDA official, Dr. John d&ins, “criticized Orexigen and its decision to rele
interim trial datd’ disclosedDefendants’ March 3, 2015 misrepresentatio@E § 122.
Specifically, in the March 5, 2015 article, Dr. Jenkins “criticized the released dg
‘unreliable,” ‘misleading,’ and ‘likely false.”ld. He “also warned that if ‘Orexigen canr
find a way to set things right,could face fines, civil penalties, or even the withdrawd
Contrave from the market.’1d.

The Moving Defendants argue that this article “cootut, by definition, be :

corrective disclosure as the ‘corrective’ information was already known to the mg

Mot. at 20 (citingKatyle v. Penn Nat'l Gaming Inc637 F.3d 462, 473 (4th Cir. 2011)).

In particular, the Moving Defendants rely on twa@es published before Lead Plaintif

alleged corrective disclosure: (1) a March 3, 2015 article published on Forbesxg

which “an ‘FDA spokesman’ . . . characterized the 25% data as ‘preliminary’ and ‘f
unreliable to conclude anything furtredyout the [CV] safety of Contrave’ and warned |
data] ‘should not be interpreted to suggest that Contrave reduces the risk for [CV] e}
id. (quoting CC 11 93, 118pDefs! RIN Ex. F at 57); and (2) a March 4, 2015 s
published by théVall StreetJournal id. (citing CC § 96), reporting that “[tlhe [FDA

considers the preliminary data ‘far too unreliable to conclude anything further
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ar to
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ory
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abot

cardiovascular safety’ and is concerned that premature disclosure of positive casult

undermine the LIGHTtady.” CC { 96.

Lead Plaintiff counters that the March 5, 2015 article contained “new, ha
information,” specifically, that Dr. Jenkins “for the first time[] criticized the el
impact of the interim trial data as ‘unreliablayiisleading’ and ‘likely false” and “adde

that ‘if Orexigen cannot find a way to set things right, it could face fines, civil penaiti

rmful

d
es

even the withdrawal of Contrave from the market,” statements that “challengéd th

legitimacy and continuation of the Company’sienContrave drug development progr
111
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and causegthe price of Orexigen stock to plummet as much as 16% in intraday trading.
Opp’n at 23 (quotingC § 122) (citingd. 1 19, 123, 125).

The Court agrees with the Moving Defendants that the March 3, R@b&s.com
and March 4, 201%/all Street Journadrticles already had disclosed that the FDA beligeved
that the 25percentinterim data was “unreliable” before the March 5, 2015 Forbes|.com
article was publishedThose articles, however, had not disclodeat Orexigen “could
face fines, civil penalties, or even the withdrawal of Contrave from the mar8eeCC
1122. The Court therefore concludes that the March 5, 2015 Forbes.com article revea
some aspect of the alleged fraud to the market eodsguently, that Lead Plaintiff
adequately alleges loss causation as to the March 5, 2015 corrective disclosure.

b. Dr. Nissen’s May 12, 2015 Press Release

Lead Plaintiff also alleges that Dr. Nissen’s May 12, 2015 press release cofrects
Defendants’ March 3, 2015 misrepresentatioBeeCC |1 12628. Dr. Nissen’s press
release indicated that the “Light Trial . . . has been haltédf’' 126, and thaDrexigen’s
March 3, 2015 disclosure of the 25 percent interim analysis was “without the authorizatic
of the study’s academic leadershipld. (emphasis omitted)Dr. Nissen reiterated that
“the 25 percent interim data are not conclusive in establishing either benefit or fisk ¢
Contrave on cardiovascular risk” and that “[tlhe[ 50% interim] results do not confirm
cardiovascular benefits of Contrave claimed by Orexigen in the patent applicasied
on the data obtained at the 25 percent time point in the tridl.”"He added that “[t]he
inconsistency of effects on cardiovascular outcomes between the first 25 percentjand
second 25 percent of the Light Study clearly illustrates the risks inherentjudgraent
of clinical trial results based upon an interim analysis and demonstrate why interim|resu
should remain confidential during any ongoing tridd: (emphasis omitted).

The Moving Defendants argue that the press release “did not correct anythipg sé
by Defendants on March 3" because it “said nothing alvw was responsible fgr
publishing the patent” and did not “dispute the claims contained therein,” as “the 25 perce

interim results were still technically accurate.” Mot. at 20 (quokihgja, 899 F.3d at
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1015). Lead Plaintiff notes that the Forbes.com article concerning the press
published later that day, noted that “[p]atients were misled, investors were misledr{
at 23-24 (quotingCC 1 127) (emphasis omitted).

AlthoughDr. Nissen’s May 12, 2015 press release may have servetba®etive

disclosure for the alleged misrepresentations made on May 8, 2015, thendstiagred

relea

Opp

U

with the Moving Defendants that it does not reveal any information about the allege

misrepresentations or omissions from March 3, 2015, that had not already been reveale

the market. The alleged misstatements on March 3, 2015, related solely to the unaduthori;

publication of the“unreliable” interim 25 percentdata and Defendants’ role in t

he

publication of thé371 Patent. Articles published on March 3 through 5, 2015, however,

alreadyhadmade clear that Orexigen had published the interirpe2bentdata without
the authorization of the FDA and that the FDA considered the interipe&tentdata

unreliable. See supré&ectionll.A.2.a. Consequently, Dr. Nissen’s May 12, 2015 press

release did not serve to “correct” any of those alleged misrepresentations, wh

already been revealed to the market.

ch h

The only remaining question is whether Dr. Nissen’s May 12, 2015 press felea:

revealed to the market any information concerning the alleged omissions reldted to t
publication of the '371 Patent. The Court concludes that it did not. The Ninth Circui

reasoned thatpy failing to inform investors about Orexigerrole in publishing the 2014

Patent Aplication, Orexigen arguably gave the false impression that it played no

revealing the 25 percent interim restltsSee Khoja 899 F.3d at 1013. The only

ole il

information contained in the May 12, 2015 press release concerning the 2014 Patc

Application is that, “in March 2015, Orexigen publicly disclosed the confidential 25

percent interim analysis of the Light Study as part of a patent and securities fillraytw

the authorization of the study’s academic leadershij’' 126 (emphasis omittedJhe

March 5, 2015 alleged corrective disclosure, however, had already discloged th

“Orexigenhald] made the interim data from the LIGHT trial public through the process of

obtaining patents,” a decision that violated Orexigen's duty to keep such
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confidential in accordance with “FDA guidance[] and the scientific literdtuseeDefs.’
RJIN Ex. F. The Court therefore concludes that the May 12, 2015 press release &4
corrective disclosure as to the alleged misrepresentations from March 3, 2015.
B. Third Cause of Action: Violations of § 20(a) of the 1934 Act Against the
Moving Defendants

“Section 20(a) of th¢1934] Act makes certain ‘controlling’ individuals also liak

for violations of section 10(b) and its underlying regulationgticco Partners, LLC V.
Digimarc Corp, 552 F.3d 981, 990 (9th Cir. 200%9s amendedFeb. 10, 2009).

Specifically, Section 20(a) provides:

Every person who, directly or indirectly, controls any person
liable under any provision of this chapter or of any rule or
regulation thereunder shall also be liable jointly and severally
with and to the same extent as such controlled person to any
person to whom such controlled person is liable (including to the
Commission in any action brought under paragraph (1) or (3) of
section 78u(d) of this title), unless the controlling person acted in
good faith and did not directly or indirectly induce the act or acts
constituting the violation or cause of action.

15 U.S.C. § 78t(a). “Thus, a defendant employee of a corporation who has violg
securities laws will be jointly and severally liable to the plaintiff, as I@tha plaintiff

demonstrates ‘a primary violation of federal securities law’ and that ‘the defe

exercised actual power or control over the primary violatoZticco Partners552 F.3d

at 990 (quotindAm. W. Holding Corp.320 F.3dat 945) (citingParacor Fin., Inc. v. Gen.

Elec. Capital Corp.96 F.3d 1151, 1161 (9th Cir. 1996)). “Section 20(a) claims mg
dismissed summarily . . . if a plaintiff fails to adequately plead a primary violati
section 10(b).”1d. (citing In re VeriFone Sec. Litigll F.3d 865, 872 (9th Cir. 1993
re Metawave Commc’ns Corp. Sec. Lit#98 F. Supp. 2d 1056, 1087 (W.D. Wash. 200

" To reiterate, the Court makes no determination as to whether the May 12, 2015 passssesheed as
corrective disclosure as to the alleged misrepresentations from May 8, 2015.
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The Moving Defendants contend that “[b]Jecause the Complaint fails to plead

primary violation of Section 10(bjhe Section 20(a) claim also fails.” Mot. at 20 n|.

(citing Lipton v. PathoGenesis Cor284 F.3d 1027, 1035 n.15 (9th Cir. 20020)icco
Partners, LLC 552 F.3d at 990)Having concluded that Lead Plaintiff adequately allg
a cause of action for Viation of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule (), see
supra pages 3-38 the CourtDENIES the Moving Defendants’ Motion as to Le
Plaintiff's third cause of action.
CONCLUSION
In light of the foregoing, the CouBRANTS IN PART AND DENIES IN PART

Defendants’ RIN (ECF N@®8-15), DENIES Lead Plaintiffs RIN (ECF Ndl03-1), and
GRANTS IN PART AND DENIES IN PART the MovingDefendants’ Mtion (ECF No.
98), as detailed abovelLead Plaintiff MAY FILE an amended consolidated comple

within thirty (30) daysof the date on which this Order is electronically docketedould

Lead Plaintiff &il to file an amended complaiby this datethis action will proceed on h
surviving causes of action
IT IS SO ORDERED.

<

on. Janis L. Sammartino
United States District Judge

Dated: September 23, 2019
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